CITY OF HANOVER
CITY COUNCIL MEETING
MAY 2, 2023

Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance:

Mayor Chris Kauffman called the regular meeting of Tuesday, May 2, 2023, to order at 7:00 p.m. Present
were Councilors MaryAnn Hallstein, Thomas Dierberger, Mike Amery, and Greg Zgutowicz. Also
present were City Attorney Jay Squires, City Engineer Jennifer Edison, City Administrator Jennifer
Nash, Public Works Supervisor Jason Doboszenski, Accountant Jackie Heinz, Fire Chief Dave
Malewicki, Public Works Maintenance Worker Jason Ramthun and Administrative Assistant Amy
Biren. Guests present were Adam Lange, Dexter Dehmer, Justin Ray, Candace Amberg with WSB, Patty
Yantes, Shawn & Teri Reitz, Dale & Suzanne Frost and Wright County Sheriff Kotaska.

Approval of Agenda:
MOTION by Amery to approve the agenda, seconded by Dierberger. Motion carried unanimously.

Consent Agenda:

MOTION by Amery to approve the consent agenda, seconded by Zgutowicz.
a. Approve Minutes of April 18, 2023 LBAE and City Council Work Session Meeting
b. Approve Claims as Presented:

» Claims $ 8,337.51
> Payroll $ 10,296.56
> P/R taxes & Exp $ 4,153.78
» Other Claims $ $ 2.993.96
» Total Claims $ 25,781.81

¢. Resolution 05-02-23-35 — Approving EDA Donation to Harvest Festival Committee
Motion carried unanimously.

Citizen’s Forum
Justin Ray — West Metro Canine Cleanup

Ray handed out a proposal from his business West Metro Canine Cleanup to install and maintain pet
waste stations in town. He spoke with the Public Works Supervisor to identify preferred locations to
include in his proposal and is now presenting to Council. Nash noted she spoke with Mr. Ray and
provided the proposal to Council, and staff was going to do some additional research on options before
bringing back to Council in a work session. Kauffman suggested this idea of pet waste stations would
be a good topic for Park Board to discuss and Zgutowicz agreed.

Unfinished Business
None

New Business

Resolution 05-02-23-36 — Awarding 2023 Pavement Project
Engineer Edison reviewed bids received for this year’s pavement project. Edison stated Esterly Oaks
and Rolling Oaks are the worst condition and have taken a beating from the freeze / thaw cycles. Edison
stated the engineers estimate for both neighborhoods totaled $884,343.90, and the low bid came in from
Northwest Asphalt at $768,584.35.



Kauffman stated everyone has driven the roads and they aren’t in good shape. Doboszenski noted the
public works crew swept up 9 yards of asphalt debris in 1 day just in that area and they are sweeping
yards to help residents out. Kauffman thanked staff for providing information about street fund planning
which shows there is funding available to complete both neighborhoods this year. Edison stated the
contractor plans to start mid-June, the project will take 4-5 weeks, reclamation will take one week and
there will be a week of curb work. Hallstein stated she is happy we can plan ahead and pay for projects
in cash. Doboszenski stated they chose a small job last year, planning for a larger project this year.
Edison stated Northwest Asphalt was aggressive in their asphalt bid and provided a good value compared
to other bids received.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve Option B for Resolution 05-02-23-36, seconded by Amery. Motion
carried unanimously.

Resolution 05-02-23-37 — Awarding Cardinal Circle Park Sport Court Contract
Edison introduced Candace Amberg from WSB who did the design and bidding for the proposed sport
court project at Cardinal Circle Park. Amberg stated the bids were received back for a double
pickleball court, a half basketball court and to re-stripe the existing court at Mallard Park. Amberg
reviewed details of the project design including internal trail, culverts for stormwater, court design and
seating amenities.

Amberg stated the low bid came in from GL Contracting with an amount of $269,386.58 for the base
project, with alternates GL Contracting came in at $302,335.68. Engineers estimate was $432,750.58
and we are well below that. Zgutowicz stated the Park Board was very supportive of the alternates.
Hallstein inquired what kind of up-keep there is on the proposed logos. Amberg noted pickleball
courts need to be multi-color full paint which requires more maintenance costs over time due to need
to hire contractor for this work, but the basketball courts could be just striped which could be
maintained by in-house staff in the future if logos are not applied. Kauffman inquired on the cost to
repaint. Amberg estimate $14/sf possibly, roughly $6,500 for just the pickleball court. Amery
inquired what fund the project is being paid from, Nash stated Park Dedication Fund. Amery stated
the maintenance could be taken out of parks capital, is there a way to cut back at all, perhaps the line
striping. Kauffman inquired if the bid included coloring, Amberg stated yes. Zgutowicz stated the
logo would be an option to feature amenities available and promote pride in your city. Hallstein
suggested there may be other things to add logos and promote city amenities which would require less
up-keep.

Hallstein suggested Park Board discuss ways to promote City branding in other ways within City
parks. Amery thought perhaps benches with logos like the ones at the State Fair. Hallstein stated
donated benches have plaques.

MOTION by Amery to approve Option B of Resolution 05-02-23-37 with consultant to come back with
alternates for change order, seconded by Zgutowicz. Motion carried unanimously.



Nash noted that WSB has provided a scope of services for managing the project which Council is being
asked to consider. A motion should be made to approve the scope.

MOTION by Dierberger to approve the WSB Proposal for Managing the Buildout of the New
Amenities, Not to Exceed $25,000, seconded by Zgutowicz. Motion carried unanimously.

Personnel Committee Recommendation — Staff Position

Zgutowicz introduced the Personnel Committee’s recommendation of an Assistant Administrator/City
Clerk position for City Hall. He stated this recommendation stems back to review completed by HR
consultant DDA Human Resources which notes assistance could help the City to prepare for the future,
maintain workloads and help staff to continue to grow within their roles. Kauffman stated the Council
has discussed this previously, the added position would help meet goals. Dierberger stated he read in the
last couple of days and was surprised by the supervisory aspect, he was envisioning special projects fill
gaps at City Hall. Kauffman stated items are falling behind and response times for inquiries including
those being sent to consultants have been delayed. Kauffman noted exact duties could be flexible and
respond to strengths of candidates, need to post and see what comes in. Dierberger asked for clarification
on the total compensation. Nash stated the $45k is for the remainder of 2023 for pay and benefits, would
start at a Grade 7 on the City’s pay scale. Kauffman stated this would be an exempt position.

Nash noted Council has highlighted in discussions and within the recent goal setting session that there
are several areas they would like to see improvement including the website, creations forms for
efficiencies and this position could help manage. Improvements would be a team effort and over time
the City could develop internal capacity to handle some basic regular items more efficiently without
requiring consultants to review and each time. Kauffman stated at the goal setting session, one of the
goals is to get more on the computer and to search items easier for Council and the public. Amery stated
calendar improvements would help. Council members discussed searchable minutes/Council actions,
code enforcement improvements, electronic document storage and others.

Doboszenski expressed concerns about adding the position as the position would be paid more than
existing staff who have been here for five to nine years and he felt staff should have been consulted more
to express their opinions on staffing needs. He asked other staff present to speak to their work load, and
Heinz and Biren stated their work load is fine. Kauffman stated this would be about making
improvements as discussed and these improvements have been requested for a long time. Zgutowicz
stated this will make staff better, the new construction needs are exponential, make sure everyone is
doing their best work. Zgutowicz further stated the HR consultant interviewed everyone and we need to
understand residents’ needs.

Hallstein stated we should also look at additional help for public works staff as they have been
requesting. Amery noted this is a result of study from the third-party HR consultant. Kauffman stated
nobody likes to change, but it must happen.

Dierberger inquired about how this position would change the organizational chart. Nash stated the
position would manage administrative city hall type things like clerk duties, supervising office staff
performing finance processing and permitting, and manage other special projects depending on strengths
and interests of selected candidate. Zgutowicz stated other cities are growing as well, this is very similar



in the way they’re set up with regards to positions. Nash stated yes, it’s common for communities of
this size to have either an administrative services director or city clerk/assistant administrator. Kauffman
stated current staff can apply for the position. Nash noted Council’s requested self-service options are
available in other communities and provide efficiencies. Dierberger noted staffing is low.

Resident Yantes stated she attended the meeting where the HR consultant provided her report and would
like to know when the updates to staff’s job descriptions will be complete. Heinz stated her concern that
the proposed new position would take away part of the tasks she and Biren are doing. She believes
current staff job descriptions should be updated first. Nash noted all of the positions need to fit together
as work of one affects the others - this position would be a piece in that puzzle. Kauffman noted the HR
consultant reviewed each position in 2022, met with all staff, has received staff’s requests for alterations
to their job descriptions, and the descriptions are close to being completed through the consultant.

Resident Lange suggested most staff feel they are managing their current work and this position would
therefore not be needed. Kauffman stated for us to move forward, we need more horsepower.

Heinz expressed concerns about tasks she is being asked to do that she hasn’t previously done like liquor
licensing. She feels these are changes to her job description. Nash noted they are not changes - the
population of the community is now around 4,000 and we can’t pretend like the organization can still
operate the same as it did when the community was 2,000 people.

Zgutowicz stated while current staff may not feel overwhelmed, future projects could make them
overwhelmed and we need to make progress and move the city forward. Resident Yantes inquired why
tasks are being taken away from other staff members to go to this position and she expressed concern
that this position would be paid higher than current staff who have reached the top of the wage scales
for their positions. Nash stated the responsibilities of each position dictate the wage within the points
system and this is necessary for compliance with pay equity standards.

Fire Chief Malewicki suggested an administrative assistant may be a better add to staffing. Kauffman
noted the proposed description would bring the skill set Council is looking for. Hallstein inquired who
would be on the hiring process, Kauffman stated Zgutowicz, himself, the administrator and possibly
Doug Hammerseng if he’s in town.

Biren stated staff isn’t opposed to hiring another person, the process needs to fit together and she would
like job descriptions for current staff completed first to get the frame. She stated she has written her new
job description and others.

Dierberger asked if this proposed position description has been shared with the HR consultant working
on other descriptions, and Nash replied that it has and she has helped write this new position description.
Kauffman noted the Personnel Committee is available to anyone who would like to discuss any questions
or concerns. They plan to work with the consultant to complete review of proposed updates to job
descriptions as soon as possible.

MOTION by Zgutowicz to table the Personnel Committee recommendation, seconded by Hallstein.
Motion carried unanimously.



EDA Recommendation — Minnesota Design Team Visit

Nash introduced a project recommended by the EDA to bring in a group called the Minnesota Design
Team. The EDA requests to submit application as soon as possible in hopes of being place on the group’s
fall schedule and EDA would pay for the approximately $7,500 expense through their budget. Dierberger
stated they would gather input from the community people who want to provide input. Hallstein noted
the visit would bring in experts from different disciplines to facilitate community discussions on topics
of interest including things like opportunities to help with downtown, design elements of upcoming
county road project and others. Yantes noted she enjoys reaching out to businesses to connect them with
the community including the EDA social and ways she can help them as current business owner and
long time resident. Amery stated he likes the idea of coming to shared vision, it would help the
downtown and County Road 19. He noted the EDA is recommending, it looks cool and there are a lot
of cities which have utilized it.

MOTION by Hallstein to approve the Minnesota Design Team Visit, seconded by Dierberger. Motion
carried unanimously.

Reports
Doboszenski
e The Plow Truck Chassis is done and moving to Towmaster.
e Are doing Mastic Around Town.
Zgutowicz
e Discussed Cardinal Park Sports Court
e Bike Rodeo will be Taking Place in a Couple Weeks.
Amery
o Attended the Wright County Aggregate Meeting, there is $600K in the pot, will give up to $120K
this year with a max of $40K, Applications are due the 2™ Friday in June.
e Visited with Ken Warpula at the newly remodeled meeting room, The FRA spent $27K and it
looks great, better than facilities at City Hall.
Nash
e Staff has not heard back from Hennepin County regarding the Organics Dumpster. St. Michael
would like to partner, the logistics on their end would be difficult, worth a try to start with it her,
Council Consensus yes.
Heinz
e The Audit is Complete, and you can expect to see the Auditors at the First Meeting in June.
e The Park Board Meeting has been pushed back a week to Tuesday, May 30" and will be Starting
at 5:30 pm to visit all the Current and Future Parks.
e Will be at the Clerks Institute All next week.

Kauffman
e Received an E-Mail Regarding no mow May. Council member noted they would deal with
complaints if they receive any for folks who decide to practice no lawn mowing in May, but
general consensus was that it doesn’t seem likely there would be issue with folks doing this here.

Adjournment
A motion was made by Amery and seconded by Hallstein to adjourn at 9:08 p.m. All in favor. Motion
carried.



APPROVED BY:

Chris Kauffman, Mayor
ATTEST:

Jennifer Nash, City Administrator



